Public Document Pack

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
DATE:

Wednesday, 22 July 2020

TIME:

11.00 am

VENUE:

Online only - Due to Covid-19, this meeting will be held remotely.

PANEL MEMBERS: Councillor Victoria Oldham, Councillor Andrew Paraskos,
Councillor Ed Darling.
STANDBY MEMBER: Councillor Nigel Simms (to attend only if specifically
requested to do so.)
Notice is hereby given that the above meeting will take place for the purpose of
deciding an application under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.
AGENDA
Item Title
1.

TO APPOINT A CHAIR:

2.

INTRODUCTIONS:

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests
under the Code of Conduct.

4.

TO AGREE A PROCEDURE FOR HEARING:
Copy of suggested procedure attached.

5.

EXEMPT INFORMATION:
To determine whether to exclude the press and public during the
consideration of agenda items.

6.

LICENSING ACT 2003 REVIEW: APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW
OF A PREMISES LICENCE FOR THE COACH AND HORSES,
WEST PARK, HARROGATE HG1:

Page
Number

3 - 68

NOTES:

Legal and Governance | Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate | HG1 9RW
01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk

Members are reminded that in order to expedite business at the meeting and
enable Officers to adapt their presentations to address areas causing difficulty,
they are encouraged to contact Officers prior to the meeting with questions on
technical issues in reports.
Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting as observers for all those
items taken in open session.
Please contact Democratic Services Officer Charles Casey at the Civic Centre, if
you have any queries or need further information on this agenda - telephone
01423 500600 ext.58078 or email democraticservices@harrogate.gov.uk.

Legal and Governance | Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate | HG1 9RW
01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 6

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
DATE:

Wednesday, 22 July 2020

TIME:

11.00 am

VENUE:

Online only - Due to Covid-19, this meeting will be held remotely.

PANEL MEMBERS: Councillor Victoria Oldham, Councillor Andrew Paraskos,
Councillor Ed Darling.
STANDBY MEMBER: Councillor Nigel Simms (to attend only if specifically
requested to do so.)
Notice is hereby given that the above meeting will take place for the purpose of
deciding an application under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.
AGENDA
Item Title
1.

TO APPOINT A CHAIR:

2.

INTRODUCTIONS:

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests
under the Code of Conduct.

4.

TO AGREE A PROCEDURE FOR HEARING:
Copy of suggested procedure attached.

5.

EXEMPT INFORMATION:
To determine whether to exclude the press and public during the
consideration of agenda items.

6.

LICENSING ACT 2003 REVIEW: APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW
OF A PREMISES LICENCE FOR THE COACH AND HORSES,
WEST PARK, HARROGATE HG1:

Page
Number

3 - 68

NOTES:

Legal and Governance | Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate | HG1 9RW
Page 3
01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk

Members are reminded that in order to expedite business at the meeting and
enable Officers to adapt their presentations to address areas causing difficulty,
they are encouraged to contact Officers prior to the meeting with questions on
technical issues in reports.
Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting as observers for all those
items taken in open session.
Please contact Democratic Services Officer Charles Casey at the Civic Centre, if
you have any queries or need further information on this agenda - telephone
01423 500600 ext.58078 or email democraticservices@harrogate.gov.uk.

Legal and Governance | Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate | HG1 9RW
Page 4
01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk

REPORT TO:

Licensing Sub-Committee

DATE:

22 July 2020

DEPARTMENT:

Community Services

REPORTING OFFICER:

Director of Community Services
(Report written by Emma Wade, Licensing
Enforcement Officer

SUBJECT:

Licensing Act 2003 Review
Application for a review if a premises licence for the
Coach and Horses, West Park, Harrogate HG1

WARD/S AFFECTED:

Harrogate-Stray

FORWARD PLAN REF:
N/A
___________________________________________________________________
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to determine an application for the review of a premises
licence under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003. The Licensing Authority has a duty
to determine licence review applications made under the Licensing Act 2003.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION/S REASON/S FOR DECISION/S

2.1

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee must, having regard to the application and any
relevant representations, take such of the steps as detailed below (if any) as it considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

3.0

APPLICATION DETAILS
The Licensing Team, Harrogate Borough Council, represented by Gareth Bentley,
Food, Licensing and Occupational Safety Manager applied for review of the premises
licence for the Coach and Horse on 3 June 2020. See Appendix 1 for the full
application and appendix 7 supporting evidence.

3.1

The premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor for the Coach and
Horses is Mr Anthony Robert John Nelson, Harrogate.

3.2

The premises licence with conditions is attached as Appendix 2 which currently
permits the following
Licensable activities sale of alcohol on and off the premises:
Monday to Sunday 10.00 to 00.00

Page
Page 65

The opening hours of the premises are:
Monday to Sunday 10.00 to 00.30
3.3

Summary of the review
The responsible authorities and the licence holder were notified in accordance with
section 29 of The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises
certificates) Regulations 2005.

3.4

The Licensing Team have also served a Prohibition Notice under the Health Protection
(Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulations 2020 (As amended) see appendix
6

3.5

In accordance with section 38(1) of The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club
premises certificates) Regulations 2005 notices have been placed at the Coach and
Horses and on the Councils website giving all other parties 28 days to make their own
representation.

3.6

Representations have been received from the following Responsible Authorities:
North Yorkshire police on the objectives of prevention of Crime and Disorder & Public
Safety, attached at appendix 4.
There has been 47 representation received from other persons, appendix 5.
There were 44 representations in support of the review.
A total of 3 representations were receive in support of the Coach and Horses.

3.7

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee must, having regard to the application and any
relevant representations, take such of the steps as detailed below (if any) as it considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives:
The steps are –
(a) to modify the conditions of the licence;
(b) to condition the provision of live or recorded music in accordance with section 177(A)
of the Licensing Act 2003;
(c) to remove the designated premises supervisor;
(d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
(e) to revoke the licence.

5.4

Promotion of the licensing objectives

Page
Page
67
2

5.5

Section 4 of the Licensing Act 2003 places a duty on the Licensing Authority to carry out
its functions under the Act with a view to promoting the licensing objectives. The licensing
objectives :
The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety
The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm

•
•
•
•

5.6

Each objective is of equal importance. It is important to note that there are no other
licensing objectives, so that these four objectives are paramount considerations at all
times

6.0

Harrogate Borough Council Licensing Policy considerations

6.1

Harrogate Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy, adopted 04 March 2015, is
relevant in considering this application.

6.2

The following sections of the Harrogate Borough Council’s Statement of Licensing
Policy are relevant in considering the licensing objectives in relation to this
application:
•
•
•
•

Disturbance and environment Sections 4, 6 and 9
Crime and disorder Sections 4 and 6
Public safety Section 4
Protection of children Sections 4 and 6

7.0

LICENSING ACT 2003 SECTION 182 GUIDANCE FOR CONSIDERATION

7.1

Section 2 of the Guidance issued by The Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport
(March 2015) under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 refers to the licensing
objectives in relation to this application:

7.2

Section 11 of the guidance refers to review of premises licences.

8.0

REQUIRED ASSESSMENTS AND IMPLICATIONS

8.1

The following were considered: Financial Implications; Human Resources
Implications; Legal Implications; ICT Implications; Strategic Property/Asset
Management Considerations; Risk Assessment; Equality and Diversity (the Public
Sector Equality Duty and impact upon people with protected characteristics). If
applicable, the outcomes of any consultations, assessments, considerations and
implications considered necessary during preparation of this report are detailed below.

9.0

CONCLUSIONS

Page
Page
87
3

9.1

An application for review of the premises licence for the Coach and Horses has been
made by the Licensing Team, Harrogate Borough Council, represented by Gareth Bentley,
Licensing Manager.

9.2

The Licensing Sub-Committee must, having regard to the application and any relevant
representations, take such of the steps as detailed in paragraph 3.9 above.

9.3

The Licensing Act 2003 places a duty on the Licensing Authority to carry out its functions
under the Act with a view to promoting the licensing objectives detailed in paragraph 5.5

10.

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Application form
Appendix 2 – Premises Licence
Appendix 3 – Location plan
Appendix 4 - Representation-Responsible Authority,
Appendix 5 - Representations- Other Persons
Appendix 6 – Notice
Appendix 7 – Supporting Evidance

Background Papers - None
OFFICER CONTACT: Please contact Emma Wade if you require any further information
on the contents of this report. The Officer can be contacted at Licensing, Harrogate
Borough Council, P.O. Box 787, Harrogate, HG1 9RW, by telephone on 01423 500600
ex58524 or by e-mail at licensing@harrogate.gov.uk

Page
Page
89
4

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.
I

Gareth Bentley, Food, Licensing and Occupational Safety Manager

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below
Part 1 – Premises or club premises details
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
The Coach and Horses
16 West Park

Post town Harrogate

Post code (if known) HG1 1BJ

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
Anthony Robert John Nelson

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
WK/060707809

Part 2 - Applicant details
I am
Please tick  yes
1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)
or (B) below)
2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)
3) a member of the club to which this application relates
(please complete (A) below)

Page
Page109

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick  yes
Mr

Mrs

Miss

Surname

Ms

Other title
(for example, Rev)
First names

Please tick  yes
I am 18 years old or over
Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address
Post town

Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number
E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT
Name and address

Telephone number (if any)
E-mail address (optional)

Page
Page1011

2

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT
Name and address
Harrogate Borough Council
Civic Centre
St Lukes Avenue
Harrogate
HG1 2AE

Telephone number (if any)
01423 500600
E-mail address (optional)
gareth.bentley@harrogate.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes 
1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

Page
Page1211

3

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)
The prevention of crime and disorder, the protection of public safety and public nuisance
Mr Nelson has repeatedly breached the requirements of the Health Protection (Coronavirus,
Restrictions) (England) Regulations 2020 (As amended) and also a Prohibition Notice issued
under those Regulations.
Mr Nelson has repeatedly breached a licence condition which requires that, “No customer will be
permitted to take open containers of alcohol or soft drinks from the premises”.
Mr Nelson has not taken appropriate steps to protect either of the licensing objectives even
when asked or required to do so.

Page
Page1213

4

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)
The prevention of crime and disorder
On Saturday 30 May 2020 at 17:31hrs I was contacted by Dean Richardson, HBC Head of Safer
Communities and alerted to The Coach and Horses having customers drinking outside the
premises. I spoke to my colleagues, Julia Stack, Community Safety and CCTV Manager and
Tony Moule, Senior Environmental Health Officer. Julia Stack confirmed that CCTV could see
customers drinking and using seating outside the Coach and Horses. Tony Moule confirmed that
he had passed by and witnessed this and agreed that the provision of seating for customers
adjacent to the premises constituted a breach of Regulation 4 of The Health Protection
(Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulations 2020 (The Regulations). Having received no
response by telephone from The Coach and Horses, at 22:15hrs Tony Moule sent an email to
The Coach and Horses confirming the requirements of the Regulations. The email is attached to
this request at appendix 1.
On Sunday 31 May 2020 at 14:45hrs I was contacted again by Dean Richardson who had
spoken to Wallace Sampson, HBC Chief Executive, requesting further action be taken after
receiving complaints about The Coach and Horses again providing seating for customers
adjacent to the premises. At 13:20hrs I visited The Coach and Horses with Tony Moule and
witnessed customers leaving the premises with filled open plastic glasses and standing around
the premises and across Tower Street to drink them. In addition, customers were leaving the
premises with filled open plastic glasses and crossing the main West Park road to sit on bar
stools, chairs and beer barrels on the grass strips next to the road on either side of the
pedestrian crossing. There were approximately seventy five customers in the area drinking. At
15:35 Tony Moule and myself met with the licence holder and Designated Premises Supervisor
(DPS). He confirmed his name to be Anthony Robert John Nelson. We went to a quiet area to
the rear of premises to discuss the nature of his business and compliance with the Regulations.
Mr Nelson confirmed that he was selling alcohol from The Coach and Horses along with plants
and bird tables for the charity Horticap inside the premises. He confirmed that customers were
able to enter the premises to buy drinks, purchase plants and bird table and use the toilets. He
confirmed that he had provided the chairs and tables across the West Park road for use by
customers. When I explained that the Regulations prohibited the provision of seating adjacent to
the premises and that an offence was being committed Mr Nelson said he would only remove
them if we served a formal notice. I confirmed that we would serve one and that it would have
immediate effect. Discussions with Mr Nelson ceased at 15:40hrs and Tony Moule and myself
left the area to prepare a Prohibition Notice under the Regulations and to make notes of the
discussion. At 16:05hrs Tony Moule and myself returned to The Coach and Horses to serve the
Prohibition Notice on Mr Nelson. On approaching the premises we were told by a member of
staff that Mr Nelson was outside somewhere. We searched the outdoor area and had to cross
the West Park road and go amongst his customers to find him. Maria Bentley, HBC Area
Environmental Health Officer joined us. She had been monitoring compliance at other premises
in the town centre. At this point customers had been informed of our actions and became
aggressive and abusive towards us. Mr Nelson was sitting on a bar stool with customers next to
the pedestrian crossing on the other side of the road to The Coach and Horses. Mr Nelson
proceeded to argue that we couldn’t serve the notice because his customers were on North
Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) land. Mr Nelson stood up and moved into my social
distancing space to argue his point. He came within half a metre of me so I moved back. I asked
Mr Nelson to move to a more private area to discuss the Prohibition Notice. He refused saying
that he wanted to have the discussions in front of all his customers. At this point I told Mr Nelson
that we had explained the requirements of the law and the purpose of the Prohibition Notice. I
handed the notice to him and he accepted it. We then left the area to return to our cars. We
were followed by a particularly aggressive male who crossed the road with us and followed us
up Tower Street towards the car park where we were parked. He eventually gave up. At no point
did Mr Nelson try to control the aggressive behaviour of his customers. At 16:20hrs we left the
area. The CCTV Team reported that the seating remained in place with customers using them
until 18:30hrs.

Page
Page1413

5

On Monday 1 June 2020 at 14:30 Benjamin Harrison, HBC CCTV Operative, reported that 9
people were outside The Coach and Horses, 6 of them with seats. Most of them were drinking
out of pint glasses. North Yorkshire Police (NYP) PCSO Hazel Thomson was in attendance at
that time with PCSO Grieves. On arrival they noticed two ladies drinking in open plastic cups at
the front of The Coach and Horses. Additionally people were sitting outside, on the opposite
side of the road to the pubs' side door on Tower Street drinking from open plastic pint cups.
They went into the pub and the male behind the counter was busy serving a male customer.
PSCO Thomson spoke to the male who had been serving, he confirmed he was the manager.
She explained to the him that a complaint had been received about the drinking in the streets
and the pub being open. She then explained that she would take photos and send them to
licensing. PSCO Thomson took photos of the immediate area outside the pub on Tower Street.
She asked the manager if he had sold the drinks and if the chairs opposite belonged to the pub
which he replied 'yes'. PSCO Thomsons statement is attached to this request at appendix 2.
Julia Stack consulted the CCTV Team who confirmed that the chairs were taken in at 18:20hrs.
On Tuesday 2 June 2020 Tony Moule sent a letter by email and post to Mr Nelson at The Coach
and Horses. The letter alerted Mr Nelson to a further offence under the Licensing Act 2003, a
contravention of his licence conditions which stipulated that, “No customer carrying bottles or
glasses will be admitted at any time. No customer will be permitted to take open containers of
alcohol or soft drinks from the premises. Every effort will be made for all bottles and glasses to
be removed from the public areas as soon as they are finished with”. This was a condition that
Mr Nelson had agreed with North Yorkshire Police in the interests of public safety and to prevent
crime and disorder. The letter is attached to this request at appendix 3. At 17:34hrs Sgt Alex
Sellars of NYP took a photo showing people drinking from glasses and the use of a bar chair
across the road from The Coach and Horses on Tower Street. At 18:20hrs a member of the
public sent an email and photo to Sgt Sellars again showing people drinking from glasses and
the use of a bar chair across the road from The Coach and Horses on Tower Street. These are
attached to this request at appendix 4.
Public Safety and public nuisance
The licence condition prohibiting the taking of open vessels from The Coach and Horses was
applied to control crime and disorder and to protect public safety. This has been repeatedly
breached as detailed above.
The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulations 2020 were introduced
by the Government to protect the community from the COVID-19 illness and to bring down the
infection rate in England. Pubs were closed with the exception of sales for consumption off the
premises, “take-away”. The restrictions relating to pubs have remained unchanged since the
beginning of lockdown. The gathering of people in public places has also been restricted during
this period with the gathering of people from separate households being limited to just two
people with appropriate social distancing measures being observed. This was case until Monday
1 June 2020. From Monday 1 June 2020 the maximum number of people was lifted to six from
different households. The gatherings caused by the placing of tables and chairs and allowing of
customers to drink around the outside of The Coach and Horses was not in compliance with the
gathering controls. A group of around seventy five people were closely gathered and not in
compliance with the two metre social distancing rules. This posed a risk of infection among
customers with the added risk of all those customers taking an infection back to their own
homes and the subsequent impact on the safety of the wider community that they come into
contact with and constituting a nuisance in accordance with the s182 Guidance (gatherings
being prejudicial to health due to the COVID-19 infection risk).

Page
Page1415

6

Please tick  yes
No

Have you made an application for review relating to the
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application

Day Month

Year

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they
were and when you made them
N/A

Page
Page1615

7

Please tick 
yes



I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities and
the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, as
appropriate
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application
will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A
FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO
MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF
ANY AMOUNT.
Part 3 – Signatures (please read guidance note 4)
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature

…………

…………………………………

Print name …………Gareth Bentley………………………………………………..
Date
3 June 2020
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
Capacity
Food, Licensing and Occupational Safety Manager
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town

Post Code

Telephone number (if any)
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail
address (optional)

Page
Page1617

8

Notes for Guidance
1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.
2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.
3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.
4. The application form must be signed.
5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.
6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Page
Page1817

9

Appendix 1 – Email from the Senior EHO to The Coach and Horses Saturday 30
May 22:15hrs
Dear Sir/Madam, I have telephoned the premises a number of times but failed to get through and
was unable to leave a message on the answerphone. I am aware that you were operating as a
takeaway today and customers were witnessed drinking whilst seated on the benches either side of
the main entrance to the premises. I respectfully draw your attention to the above-mentioned
regulations which prohibits the sale of food or drink for consumption on the premises and, in
addition, any area adjacent to the premises, where seating is made available for customers of the
business, is to be treated as part of the premises. I have detailed the relevant regulation below for
completeness.
Requirement to close premises and businesses during the emergency
4.—(1) A person responsible for carrying on a business which is listed in Part 1 of Schedule 2 must—
(a) During the emergency period—
(i)
close any premises, or part of the premises, in which food or drink are sold for
consumption on those premises, and
(ii)
cease selling food or drink for consumption on its premises; or
(b) If the business sells food or drink for consumption off the premises, cease selling food or
drink for consumption on its premises during the emergency period.
(3) For the purposes of paragraph (1)(a)(ii) and (b), an area adjacent to the premises of the business
where seating is made available for customers of the business (whether or not by the business) is to be
treated as part of the premises of that business.

You must therefore ensure that no external seating on or adjacent to your premises is used by
customers. Any such use, as witnessed today, is a clear breach of this regulation. I would advise that
should any further breaches be witnessed, formal action will be taken against you. I would be grateful
for confirmation that all outdoor seating at your premises is to be taken out of use with immediate
effect. Please do not hesitate to get back to me should you wish to discuss this matter further. Yours
faithfully
Tony Moule BSc(Hons) MCIEH CEnvH
Senior EHO (Licensing/Health and Safety)
Safer Communities
Harrogate Borough Council
PO Box 787
Harrogate
HG1 9RW
Telephone: 01423 500600 Ext 58157
Email: tony.moule@harrogate.gov.uk
Website: www.harrogate.gov.uk

Page
Page1819

Appendix 2 – Photos to accompany statement of PCSO Thomson

Page
Page2019

Page
Page2021

Page
Page2221

MG11

RESTRICTED (when complete)

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B
URN

12

NY

18

Statement of: Hazel Winifred THOMSON
Age if under 18: Over 18

(if over 18 insert ‘over 18’)

Occupation: Police Community Support Officer
This statement (consisting of 1 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated
in it anything which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true.
Signature: Hazel Thomson

(witness)

Date: 02/06/2020

I am Police Community Support Officer 3665 THOMSON of North Yorkshire Police, currently stationed at
Craven Lodge Police Station, Harrogate. On MONDAY 01st JUNE 2020 I was on duty in full uniform working
from 0800 - 1600.
At 1430 I was on patrol with PCSO 3737 GRIEVES in the area of HARROGATE Town Centre, when FCR
asked that I attend the COACH and HORSES Public House on WEST PARK. On arrival I noticed two ladies
drinking in open plastic cups at the front of the pub on WEST PARK. Additionally people were sitting outside,
on the opposite side of the road to the pubs' side door on TOWER STREET drinking in open plastic pint cups. I
went into the pub and the male behind the counter was busy serving a male customer. I spoke to the male who
had been serving, he confirmed he was the manager. I explained to the him that a complaint had been
received about the drinking in the streets and the pub being open. I then explained that I would take photos
and send to licensing for them to manage. He was compliant with the request and asked that I take a photo of
the immediate area outside the pub on TOWER STREET which had no customers on, which I did. I asked the
manager if he had sold the drinks and if the chairs opposite belonged to the pub which he replied 'yes'
Before taking the photos outside I explained to the members of the public that I would be taking photos to send
to licensing. If they did not want their face to be in the photo then to turn their face away. All complied with the
request for the photo to be taken. I took photo on Tower Street across the road to the pub and also out the front
on West Park.
Photos exhibited HWT01, HWT02, HWT03, HWT04
I emailed these photos to Gareth BENTLEY at Harrogate Borough Council Food Licensing and Occupational
Safety Manager

Signature: Hazel Thomson
Signature witnessed by:

Page
Page2223

MG11

RESTRICTED
(when complete)
RESTRICTED
(when complete)

URN

Witness contact details
Name of witness: Hazel Thomson
Home Address: c/o Harrogate Police Station
E-mail address:
Home Telephone Number: n/a

12

MG11

NY

Postcode: HG3 1FR
Mobile:
Work Telephone Number: 101

Preferred means of contact (specify details for vulnerable/intimidated victims and witnesses only): e-mail
Gender:
Date and place of birth:
Former name: n/a
Ethnicity Code (16 + 1):
DATES OF WITNESS NON-AVAILABILITY:

Witness care
If ‘No’, include reason(s) on form MG6.
Is the witness willing to attend court? Yes
What can be done to ensure attendance? n/a

a)
b)

c)
Victims Only – does the victim fall into one of the 3 priority categories who are eligible for enhanced
care under the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime? 1) Victims of most serious crimes
2) Persistently
targeted victims
3) Vulnerable and intimidated .
If any of the boxes are checked then Inform CPS at pre-charge stage on MG3, and on MG11 at all other
stages and/or where necessary MG2
d)
Witness Only - Does the witness require a Special Measures Assessment as a vulnerable or
intimidated witness?
(youth under 18; witness with mental disorder, learning or physical disability; or
witness in fear of giving evidence or witness is the complainant in a sexual offence case) If they do submit
MG2 with file in anticipated not guilty, contested or indictable only cases.
e)
Does the witness have any particular needs? No If ‘Yes’ what are they? (Disability, healthcare,
childcare, transport, disability, language difficulties, visually impaired, restricted mobility or other concerns?).

Witness Consent (for witness completion)
a) The Victim Personal Statement scheme (victims only) has been explained to me
b) I have been given the Victim Personal Statement leaflet
c) I have been given the leaflet “Giving a witness statement to the police…”

Yes
Yes
Yes

No
No
No

d) I consent to police having access to my medical record(s) in
relation to this matter (obtained in accordance with local practice)

Yes

No

N/A

e) I consent to my medical record in relation to this matter being
disclosed to the defence

Yes

No

N/A

Yes

No

N/A

Yes

No

N/A

Yes

No

N/A

f)

I consent to the statement being disclosed for the purposes of
civil, or other proceedings if applicable, e.g. child care
proceedings, CICA

g) Child witness cases only. I have had the provision regarding
reporting restrictions explained to me.
I would like CPS to apply for reporting restrictions on my behalf.

‘I understand that the information recorded above will be passed on to the Witness Service, which offers help
and support to witnesses pre-trial and at court’.
Signature of witness: Hazel Thomson
PRINT NAME: HAZEL WINIFRED THOMSON
Signature of parent/guardian/appropriate adult:
PRINT NAME: n/a
n/a
Address and telephone number (of parent etc.), if different from above: n/a
Statement taken by: Self
Beckwith Head Road Harrogate 0921

2013

Time and place statement taken: Harrogate Police Station,

RESTRICTED (when complete)

Page
Page2423

RESTRICTED
(when complete)
RESTRICTED
(when complete)

2013

RESTRICTED (when complete)

Page
Page2425

MG11

MG11

Appendix 2

Mr Anthony Robert John Nelson,
Coach and Horses
16 West Park
Harrogate,
HG1 1BJ

Our Ref
Your Ref
Date

WK/202101324
2nd June 2020

Dear Mr Nelson,
Licensing Act 2003
The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulations 2020 (as
amended)
Coach and Horses, 16 West Park, Harrogate, HG1 1BJ
I refer to my visit to your premises on 31st May 2020, in the company of my colleague Gareth
Bentley, Food, Licensing and Occupational Safety Manager. At the time of visit, a Prohibition
Notice was served upon you under the Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England)
Regulations, requiring you to cease to make available outdoor seating for your customers.
Evidence has been obtained confirming that you failed to comply with this notice and are
continuing to provide seating for your customers. We are currently considering this matter.
In addition, having reviewed the Premises Licence issued under the Licensing Act 2003, it
appears that you have breached one of the conditions attached to your licence, namely: Bottles & Glasses
No customer carrying bottles or glasses will be admitted at anytime. No customer will be
permitted to take open containers of alcohol or soft drinks from the premises. Every effort
will be made for all bottles and glasses to be removed from the public areas as soon as they are
finished with.
This was a condition that you had agreed with North Yorkshire Police.
I would respectfully remind you that all conditions on a premises licence have to be complied
with and that under section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003: (1) A person commits an offence if –
(a) he carries on or attempts to carry on a licensable activity on or from any
premises otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation; or
(b) he knowingly allows a licensable activity to be so carried on.

Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate | HG1 9RW
01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk

Page
Page2625

Appendix 2

I would therefore ask that you comply with this condition. I can advise that Harrogate Borough
Council, in conjunction with partner agencies, will continue to monitor the premises to ensure
compliance. Should further breaches be witnessed, then further formal action will be taken,
which may include either the service of a Section 19 Closure Notice, a review of the Premises
Licence or an immediate prosecution.
Yours sincerely
A.P Moule
Tony Moule
Senior Environmental Health Officer (Licensing and Health and Safety)
tony.moule@harrogate.gov.uk
01423 500600 Ext 58157

Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate | HG1 9RW
01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk

Page
Page2627

Appendix 4
Email and photo from Sgt Alex Sellars 2 June 2020 17:34hrs
I’ve just been on plain clothes patrol in town and have popped past the coach and horses on the way
back. I was there a couple of minutes and people . There were people gathered on the entrance to
Tower Street on the opposite side of the road to the coach and horses and on the benches on west
park again on the opposite side of the road to the coach and horses. All holding plastic pints. 10 to
12 people in total. I was there for less than a minute and there were a couple of people going in and
out over the time. Its quite likely the landlord has told them not to stand on the pavement at the
perimeter of the building.
Apologies for the state of the photo (photo taken at 17.34hrs) . I’ve managed to put my finger across
the lens but it shows the situation quite well.
Best wishes
Sgt Alex Sellars

Page
Page2827

Photo from a member of the public sent to Sgt Alex Sellars Tuesday 2 June
2020, 18:20hrs

Page
Page2829

Page
Page3029

Licence No: WK/060707809
Granted: 28th September 2005
Department of Community Services, Springfield House, Kings Road, Harrogate, HG1 5NX
Telephone: 01423 556843 - Fax: 01423 556820

Premises Licence Summary
Licensing Act 2003

Premises address:

Coach & Horses, 16/18 West Park, Harrogate, HG1 1BJ

Licensable activities authorised by this licence: sale by retail of alcohol
Times for licensable activities
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00

Opening hours of the premises
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30

Alcohol sales are permitted for consumption both on and off the premises
Details of holder of
premises licence:

Mr Anthony Robert John Nelson,(personal details removed)

Registered number of
holder:

Not applicable

Designated premises
supervisor:

Mr Nelson

Access to the premises by children is restricted

Page
Page3031

Page
Page3231
Coach and Horses - 2

Licence No: WK/060707809
Granted: 28th September 2005
Department of Community Services, Springfield House, Kings Road, Harrogate, HG1 5NX
Telephone: 01423 556843 - Fax: 01423 556820

Premises Licence
Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 – Premises Details
Premises address:

Coach & Horses, 16/18 West Park, Harrogate, HG1 1BJ

Licensable activities authorised by this licence: sale by retail of alcohol
Times for licensable activities
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00
10:00 to 00:00

Opening hours of the premises
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30
10:00 to 00:30

Alcohol sales are permitted for consumption both on and off the premises

Part 2
Details of holder of
premises licence:

Mr Anthony Robert John Nelson, (personal details removed)

Registered number of
holder:

Not applicable

Designated premises
supervisor:

Mr Anthony Robert John Nelson, (personal details removed)

Personal licence number:

WK/050609558

Issuing authority:

Harrogate Borough Council

_____________________________________________
For and on behalf of Harrogate Borough Council

Page
Page3233
Coach and Horses - 3

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol
1.

Where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must
include the following conditions.

2.

The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises
licence-

3.

a.

at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or

b.

at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence
must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Recorded background music is unrestricted.
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Licensable activities
Sale by retail of alcohol
Both on and off the premises
Concern for children
None
Embedded restrictions to be removed
Remove all embedded conditions of the licensing Act 1964
Licensing objectives
General
All staff trained in Licensing Act 1964. 30 min drinking up time will allow appropriate
dispersal of customers.
The prevention of crime and disorder
Effective and responsible management of premises. Staff training to identify potential
trouble. Zero drug tolerance. Member of Pubwatch. Barred from one barred from all. Good
relationship with local taxi firm.
Public Safety
Fire extinguisher regularly serviced. No smoking area.
The prevention of public nuisance
Staff training to prevent incidents of public nuisance. Removal of rubbish takes place at
reasonable hours.
The protection of children from harm
Proof of age scheme & staff trained. Children accompanied by adults not allowed.

Page
Page3433

Coach and Horses - 4

Conditions agreed with North Yorkshire Police
Bottles & Glasses
No customer carrying bottles or glasses will be admitted at anytime. No customer will be
permitted to take open containers of alcohol or soft drinks from the premises. Every effort
will be made for all bottles and glasses to be removed from the public areas as soon as they
are finished with.
Drinks Promotions
A proof of age policy to the satisfaction of the police and Harrogate Borough Council will be
in place. All inclusive nights or other inappropriate /volume drinking promotions that promote
excessive or vertical drinking philosophy will not be permitted. To include:
• No "all you can drink for a fixed entry fee" promotions.
• No use of alcoholic drinks promotions that enable customers to redeem their
entrance fee or multiples of the entrance fee in alcoholic drink once inside the venue.
• No discount for bulk purchase promotions such as "Buy one get one free" or "Buy
two glasses and get the rest of the bottle free" on a Friday or Saturday night (or a
Sunday preceding a bank holiday) after 7:00pm..
• No use of alcoholic drinks promotions that appear to target the under 18 age group.
• No use of alcoholic drinks promotions that involve any element of speed or rapid
drinking in a game or otherwise.
• No use of alcoholic drinks promotions that make suggestions of sexual success or
prowess.
• No use of alcoholic drinks promotions that suggest an association with elicit drugs.
• No use of alcoholic drinks promotions that promote binge or excessive drinking.
• No use of alcoholic drinks promotions that do not allow purchase of the smaller 25ml
/ 175ml measures if requested.
• No use of alcoholic drinks promotions that appears to promote anti social behaviour.
Drugs
Implementation of the relevant principles contained in the “Safer Clubbing” guide. Provision
of a secure area for storing seized controlled drugs.
Radio
The premises will subscribe to and operate the local radio watch scheme at their own
expense. Radios will be used to provide two way communication between themselves,
CCTV control and other premises. The equipment will be switched on at all times the
premises are open to the public and monitored by a responsible member of staff.
General
The premises will be a member of Pubwatch and will participate fully including the “Banned
from one banned from all” scheme. When the premises are open to the public every effort
will be made to ensure that there is either a personal licence holder or a D.P.S. on the
premises. An incident book will be kept which will detail recorded of all instances of public
disorder in addition to staff booking on/off duty.
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
None
Annex 4 - Plans
Please see attached

Page
Page3435
Coach and Horses - 5

Apprendix 3

Page
Page3635

Police Representation
Coach & Horses
16 West Park, Harrogate HG1 1BJ
Harrogate Borough Council
Licensing Services
St Luke’s Avenue
Harrogate
HG1 2AE
1st July 2020
Dear Sir/Madam,
As the Police Licensing Officer for North Yorkshire Police, I am delegated on behalf of the Chief
Constable to respond to all applications under the Licensing Act 2003. This representation relates to
the Licensed Premises, The Coach & Horses, 16 West Park, Harrogate, HG1 1BJ, and for which the
Police deem that the Premise Licence holder and Designated Premises Supervisor, Mr Anthony
Robert Nelson, has undermined the licensing objectives Prevention of Crime and Disorder, and
Public Safety, which will be evidenced below.
Mr Nelson has been the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor for the Coach
& Horses since the 28/09/2005. The premises are located adjacent to the Harrogate Stray which is a
long area of public parkland in the centre of Harrogate; it is open land linking the spa town’s curative
springs and wells.
The Coach & Horses has licensable activities as follows:
Supply of Alcohol -Monday –Sunday 10:00-00:00
As of 1pm on 26 March 2020 new Regulations (Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions)
(England) Regs 2020) were enforceable by law in England due to the threat to public health. Where
an owner, proprietor or manager carrying out a business (or a person responsible for other
premises) contravenes the Regulations, that person commits an offence.
From 30th May 2020 to 2nd June 2020 North Yorkshire Police received fourteen separate reports from

members of the public relating to The Coach and Horses (See attached schedule). The reports made
reference to customers of The Coach and Horses drinking from open containers on both the highway
and on the Stray adjacent to the premises.
The Premises licence has the following condition:

Page
Page3637

Police Station | Fulford Road | York | North Yorkshire | YO10 4BY



No customer carrying bottles or glasses will be admitted at any time. No customer will be
permitted to take open containers of alcohol or soft drinks from the premises.

Any failure to comply with any Premises Licence condition is a breach of Section 136. If found guilty
on summary conviction it is punishable by 6 months imprisonment/fine or both.
(1) A person commits an offence if –
(a) he carries on or attempts to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise
than under and in accordance with an authorisation; or
(b) he knowingly allows a licensable activity to be so carried on.
The fourteen reports received by North Yorkshire Police during May and June 2020 were passed to
Harrogate Borough Council in line with the Covid -19 Regulations, as Environmental Health officers
are the lead for compliance with the regulations.
On Sunday 31st May 2020, a Prohibition Notice was issued to Mr Nelson by Harrogate Borough
Council as they found him in breach of the Covid-19 Regulations.
Mr Nelson, being the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) is the person who is specified as the
‘Premises Supervisor’ and is the key person who is responsible for the day to day management of
the premises by the Premises Licence Holder. The DPS provides an essential point of contact for
Police, Fire Officers or Licensing Authority Officers.
Under the Licensing Act 2003 the DPS has a duty to promote the four Licensing Objectives:
•
•
•
•

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Public Safety
The Prevention of Public Nuisance
The Protection of Children from Harm

At a time of a Global Pandemic the prevention of Crime and Disorder & Public Safety are paramount.
Not only has Mr Nelson committed offences under section 136 of the Licensing Act, but he has also
breached Covid -19 Regulations, and has not complied with a prohibition notice, which are criminal
offences.
The section 182 Guidance states:
4.42 The 2003 Act also provides for the suspension and forfeiture of personal licences by the courts
and licensing authorities following convictions for relevant offences, including breaches of licensing
law. The police can at any stage after the appointment of a DPS seek a review of a premises licence
on any grounds relating to the licensing objectives if problems arise relating to the performance of a
DPS. The portability of personal licences is also important to industry because of the frequency with
which some businesses move managers from premises to premises. It is not expected that licensing
authorities or the police should seek to use the power of intervention as a routine mechanism for
hindering the portability of a licence or use hearings of this kind as a fishing expedition to test out the
individual’s background and character. It is expected that such hearings should be rare and genuinely
exceptional.
Mr Nelson is both the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor. North Yorkshire
Police believe that given the exceptional circumstances of Mr Nelson’s actions, he is not deemed
suitable to remain as the Designated Premises Supervisor at The Coach & Horses.

Page
Page3837

Mr Nelson provided seating adjacent to his premises, which constituted a breach of Regulation 4 of
The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulations 2020 (The Regulations). Mr
Nelson’s actions of failing to adhere to Regulation 4 by providing seating, encouraged persons to
remain drinking on land adjacent to his premises and encouraged a breach of social gathering
restrictions, as allowing public gatherings of more than two persons was a breach of the
Government’s COVID -19 Regulations in force at that time.
The Police have considered a prosecution against Mr Nelson as the Premises Licence holder and
Designated Premises Supervisor for offences of unauthorised Licensable activities. However, given
the Crown Prosecution Guidelines in respect of the offence and the possible outcomes of a
prosecution this would result in a punishment against an individual who would still be responsible
for a Licensed Premises which could still operate for licensable activities.
It is believed that if the Premises are allowed to retain a Premise Licence this will have an adverse
effect on the local community, of which some reported breaches of the COVID-19 Regulations were
made to Police and the Council and who are concerned about Public Safety and that local business
have a duty of care to comply, for which the Coach and Horses did not.
It is the view of North Yorkshire Police that the Premises Licence should be revoked and would
respectfully direct members to Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998“ it shall be the duty of
each authority to which the section applies to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder
in its area.”

Appendix 1 – Incident Report

Yours Sincerely,

J Allen
PC1503 Allen
Police Licensing Officer
Alcohol Licensing Department
Harrogate Police Station
Harrogate
HG1 1BY
Email: - Jackie.allen@orthyorkshire.pnn.police.uk

Page
Page3839

Coach & Horses, Harrogate - Incident Reports May 2020 – June 2020
Appendix 2

Page
Page4039

No

Incident
Time

Incident
Date

Day

NYP Ref
No

Occurrence Details

Outcome/Result

Offence

1

12:01

30/05/20

Sat

NYP300520200182

13:01

30/05/20

Sat

NYP300520200220

Officers attend and give advice.
Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.
Premises already been spoken to
as above.
Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.

Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing

2

3

14:08

30/05/20

Sat

NYP300520200266

Report of drinks being served by
rear of premises, contravening
COVID restrictions. People
blocking road.
Further report of drinks being
served in open containers.
Customers consuming their
drinks on the pavement
breaching social distancing
guidance.
Another caller reports approx. 20
people gathered outside drinking
at 13:00hrs (Xref above report)

ASB Env
/Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing

4

16:39

30/05/20

Sat

NYP300520200391

5

17:14

30/05/20

Sat

NYP300520200418

Premises already been spoken to
as above.
Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.
Another caller reports large group Reported to NYP licensing.
gathering outside the premises at Shared with the Licensing
15:30hrs, breaching social
Authority.
distancing guidance.
Further report rec’d by email
Officers re-attend. Landlord
reporting groups of people
spoken to and states he will
queueing for drinks, sprawled
continue to move people on from
over the pavements drinking,
location.
some with deck chairs.

ASB Env
/Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing

ASB Env
/Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing
ASB nuis /
Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing

Page
Page4041

6

23:08

30/05/20

Sat

NYP300520200692

7

12:33

31/05/20

Sun

NYP310520200254

8

13:32

31/05/20

Sun

NYP310520200285

9

14:11

31/05/20

Sun

NYP310520200313

10

14:34

31/05/20

Sun

NYP310520200336

11

14:44

31/05/20

Sun

12

19:02

31/05/20

Sun

Further report of area at approx.
14:30 hrs packed with people
drinking, not socially distancing –
all down West Park
Report that the premises is busy
again – no social distancing.

Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.
Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.
Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.

Report of premises serving
alcohol and that the premises has
provided tables & chairs on the
Stray (against bylaws). Concern
as pint glasses being used
outside
Further report detailing large
group (approx. 40 persons)
drinking outside, with tables &
chairs on the pavement
Further report as above –
drinking outside, tables & chairs
provided.

Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.

NYP310520200345

Another report as above.

Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.

NYP010620200178

Another email report received
31/05/20 at 19:02hrs complaining
about the above

Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.

Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.
Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.

ASB nuis /
Breach
of
COVID regs /
Licensing
ASB env /
Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing
ASB env /
Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing

ASB env /
Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing
ASB env /
Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing
ASB env /
Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing
ASB env /

13

14:23

01/06/20

Mon

NYP010620200276

CCTV reports the pub has tables
& chairs outside. People sat with
pints

14

13:22

02/06/20

Tues

NYP020620200207

Report that premises is open.
People obtaining pints and
gathering across the road.
Approx.10-12 people

Manager spoken to. Evidential
photos taken.
Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.
Pub has already been served
prohibition notice.
Reported to NYP licensing.
Shared with the Licensing
Authority.

Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing
ASB env /
Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing
ASB env /
Breach of
COVID regs
/ Licensing

Page
Page4241

1

Appendix 5
Representations from ‘other persons’
Representation Reference Number 1
The trading on Sunday was a clear breach after guidance was given the day before.
But I believe a fine and donation to a local Hospice or Charity is the right course of action if this is
possible.
This has been a tough time for everyone and especially the hospitality industry. Let’s show some
understanding to the Publican.
Thanks Paul.

Representation Reference Number 2
It's grossly unfair that the landlord thinks he has the right to do as be pleases. We all know its money
driven but to put people at risk is appalling.

Take away his licence, he's abused his position whilst 99% of the pubs are adhering to the
government's guidelines. Otherwise, the next issue that arises might make people think, oh it
doesn't matter, we can all do as we like anyway
Sue Dyson

Representation Reference Number 3
The scenes of people congregating outside the Coach & Horses with drinks in their hands at tables
and chairs provided by the pub made me very anxious. I am disappointed that the pub continued
with this behaviour after being warned by the Council.
I think the Council needs to take action given the seriousness of this breach of regulations.
Sue Covill
Harrogate resident

Sent from my iPad

Representation Reference Number 4
Having seen the lack of social distancing and disregarded for your advice given Saturday I feel you
need to make an example on this occasion so as to prevent reoccurrences

Page
Page4243

2
I appreciate that all business are having difficulty at this time but their has to be a standard set for all

Hopefully by all following the rules and not attempting to find a way round things we can all recover
from the current situation quicker

Mick

Representation Reference Number 5
Good afternoon,
I've read your report on Coach & Horses. In my view, their licence should be revoked. I certainly
won't visit them again after this behaviour.
In addition to breach of their licence, they have endangered public health - such selfish behaviour
considering the sacrifices many have made in recent weeks.
Kind regards

Sent from Nine
Craig Astbury

Representation Reference Number
Dear sir / madam
I am in full agreement with the council. The pub should not have been open and should not have
provided seats and tables for customers. These are unprecedented times, but we are all making
sacrifices and it is a shame that the publican of these premises felt that they did not apply to them
and were above the law. If everyone had this attitude, then the outcome in this area and the rest of
the UK with COVID-19 could be even worse. I would like to note that I am a business owner and
therefore I can understand the worries that are present at the moment but this still doe not mean
the rules can be dismissed.
Kind regards
Tarsilla J Wood

Representation Reference Number 7
The licence should be revoked immediately. There is no place in Harrogate for those who do not
respect the rules issued, that are there to safeguard the health of its residents. Unfortunately this
attitude of "I'll do what I like" is not confined only to Harrogate. The more susceptible residents, and

Page
Page4443

3
I include myself in that are frightened by this selfish, greedy, disrespectful attitude of the licensee,
and those who subscribe to his/her mentality who might just propagate covid-19 into another spike.
Best wishes
Graham Dyson

Representation Reference Number 8
You have invited feedback on the Coach and Horses incident and I would like to contribute.
I think the landlord's license should be withdrawn in view of his blatant flouting of the coronavirus
legislation.
Yours sincerely,
Richard Scott

Representation Reference Number 9
Hi
I was disappointed to see the coach and horses continue to open their premises despite a clear
breach of the lockdown and causing a nuisance to pedestrians trying to use the pavement safely and
using social distancing, including myself and family.
As a supporter of local businesses, the Prohibition notice was the only way to show support for all
the good businesses sticking to the spirit of the lockdown despite the hardship this is inevitably
bringing to their livelihoods.

Sent from my iPhone
Mark Phillip

Representation Reference Number 10
Holding a license is a position of responsibility. Alcohol is responsible for much anti-social behaviour
and violence. The Covid regulations are in place to protect the public. 40,000 deaths have Occurred.
Licenses should not be held by parties who have shown disregard for the law.
What is the point of having regulations and not enforcing them. Tax payers and voters have a
reasonable expectation that elected bodies will act appropriately
Yours faithfully

Page
Page4445

4
Andrew Calder
Sent from my iPad
Representation Reference Number 11
I wish to comment about the situation relating to the Coach and Horses, which resulted in
Harrogate's reputation being tarnished and featuring adversely in all the national and local media,
including BBC News.

The licensee misled the manager of Horticap, encouraging him to bring along lots of plants to sell
inside his pub, leading the latter to think that only tea and coffee would be offered as refreshment.
He was not told that the licensee subsequently changed his mind to offer alcohol widely. Horticap
has said it does not want any proceeds from the Coach and Horses, and is trying to dissociate his
charity from the whole sorry episode.

The actions of the licensee are completely reprehensible and irresponsible. Putting chairs and tables
outside was a deliberate act, intended to encourage people to stay. Drinks were sold in open plastic
containers, not as takeaways.

The coronavirus pandemic is likely to be with us for months, maybe even a year or more. We cannot
allow this individual and his staff to flout whatever rules are in operation. His licence should be
removed; he is not to be trusted to run this business. He is jeopardising the health of all his future
customers (if he has any), and his staff.

I suggest you throw the book at him. He was warned once ...and did it again.

Stella Pilling

Representation Reference Number 12
I feel that if the Coach and Horses breached regulations especially after been given an initial warning
they should loose there license. I have often heard that that pub has regularly had lock-ins in the
past. And for your staff to be abused like that is totally unacceptable.
Breaching regs like that when life’s are put at risk is serious and an example should be made of
them. Other business have struggled and keep the law why should they get away with it.
Regards Paul Mason

Representation Reference Number 13
Dear sir

Page
Page4645

5

Last Sunday I cycled past the pub mid afternoon and it was busy with lots of customers not social
distancing.

Clearly several had a few aa ths mood was very "happy".

Clearly a breach. Plus what toilet facilities were being used by a large number of customers.

I think if they can't observe the current regulations can they be trusted going forward !

Hope this help

Mark

Representation Reference Number 14
Dear Sir,
It is my opinion that the licence should be revoked. A blatant disregard of the current rules and
regulations by an owner who thinks the rules & regulations don’t apply to him.
It is businesses like the Coach & Horses that should be using its position to lead by example.
I think the licence should be withdrawn for a lengthy period of time of no less than 6 months to
indeed set an example to other businesses that this kind of flagrant disregard of the rules at a time
when people are dying of civic-19, will not be tolerated.
Kindest Regards
William Burton

Representation Reference Number 15
Dear Sir/Madam,

In connection with the above review and the breach of regulations by the licensee and abuse from
those members of the public who were using the facilities I would urge the Council to take the
strongest action possible.
If this means revoking the licence and closure of the premises then so be it. The vast majority of
people are making huge sacrifices in order to rid our country of this terrible virus yet for a few selfish

Page
Page4647

6
individuals all they can think of is themselves and having ’some fun’. I would hope that by taking the
strongest course possible it may well serve as a warning to others who are considering following the
same path and effectively braking the law and putting lives at risk for their own selfish gain.

Regards,

Ed Bulcock

Representation Reference Number 16
Absolutely disgraceful behaviour especially after being warn. Their licence should be taken away.
Other people (NHS staff etc) are risking and loosing their lives for idiots like these people.
Kind regards,
Michael
Sent from my iPhone

Representation Reference Number 17
Obviously a blatant disregard to the recommendations and government guidelines.
Whilst I have some limited sympathy for many of the patrons who felt the need to abuse the
government recommendations.....that is still no excuse for the Landlord to hide behind his
misconceived beliefs and cater for the gullible customers who have taken the opportunity to believe
that it is acceptable to flaunt the law.
I understand the Landlord has shown no sign of contrition.
My view is that Harrogate Borough Council has no option, and in order to restore the general
public’s confidence, but to revoke the Landlord’s Licence and shut the ‘Coach and Horses PH’
down......until a more responsible and acceptable attitude is within the law and acceptable to
Harrogate Borough Council.....
Regards,
Peter Read

Representation Reference Number 18
Dear Sir,
You have invited responses to the situation with the coach and horses pub.
I can’t comment on the specifics, but given the evidence that they broke the rules not once, but
several times, I would feel it highly appropriate to withdraw the licence permanently.

Page
Page4847

7

It is a great pub with great beer. The building hasn’t caused the issue. It’s the people running it have.
The best outcome would be for the current owners to move on and for the pub to be taken over by
law abiding ones. However if that is not possible then the council is well within its rights to take this
move.
Hopefully one day it would be restored to its former glory.
KR
Mike
Michael Stansfield

Representation Reference Number 19
I would like to support the actions being proposed by Harrogate council . the licencing authorities to
take action against the Coach and Horses

The actions to open and operate outside of the government guidelines was both foolhardy, but also
foolish – for the sake of their own financial gain, they created a social environment, that was
blatantly not within the government guidelines, and that had the potential to potentially harbour
and spread the Corona virus.

This all seems to have been done in a way that demonstrated a flagrant disregard for the general
safety of the general public, their staff, and their customers – though I have little concern for the
latter population, as they put themselves into this potentially dangerous situation…all for the sake of
a pint of beer

Once again the ‘stupid’ minority create bad publicity for the ‘law/rule abiding residents of Harrigate
district

Best regards

Andy
Andy Shaw

Representation Reference Number 20
Good evening
I was so pleased to read the order that has been submitted regarding the scenes of sheer selfishness
and danger that my family and I witnessed when we drove down West Park on Saturday 30th May

Page
Page4849

8
2020. Our observations were of dozens of people standing shoulder to shoulder with open glasses of
alcohol, across the entire pavement. This resulted in pedestrians having to move into the road to
safely pass the crowds, and cars having to be extra vigilant to avoid potential accidents. This was
seen at The Coach and Horses and Threes A Crowd.
As an NHS physio who has been working at Harrogate Hospital, treating COVID-19 patients during
the pandemic, I was enraged to see such disregard for public safety. There was no attempt at social
distancing and people were walking across West Park with their drinks to sit on the Stray.
I’m sure I stand with many others in demanding the immediate and permanent closure of The Coach
and Horses and any consequences for the licence holder.
I would also urge a change in the law (which I realise is lead by central government policy) that
allows pubs to sell takeaway alcohol. This just encourages ignorant, naive and selfish people to
jeopardise the hard work that the majority of the British public have worked so hard to achieve.
With kind Regards
Mrs Vicky Draper

Representation Reference Number 21

I witnessed the crowds outside The Coach & Horses on Saturday 30th May, and in order to
maintain the social distancing of 2 metres I had to walk in the road many times to avoid
getting to close to people. As the Advertiser reported there were people sitting around in
chairs and crowding together. So all in all the current COVID rules were being totally
breached. I do not know the extent of a prohibition notice, but given the tough time that small
businesses are having, for them to loose their license would be a very severe punishment.
After all many members of the public were willing to take advantage of the situation, and
from your report they abused the council officials. However, given the severity of the
offence, the severest censure short of a license suspension would be appropriate in the
circumstances.
Regards,
R Dziabas

Representation Reference Number 22

For the attention of Harrogate Borough Council Licensing Officers

I am a resident of Harrogate and would be happy to supply my address in confidence to the
Harrogate Borough Council if required.

I would be grateful of the licensing officers or department of the Harrogate Borough Council
would consider the following comments in reviewing the licence of:

Page
Page5049

9

Anthony Robert John Nelson
Coach and Horses
16 West Park
Harrogate
North Yorkshire
HG1 1BJ

On Sunday 31 April 2020 I had occasion to be driving along West Park in Harrogate during
the afternoon.
I was both shocked and dismayed to see a large crowd of people gathered both outside the
Coach and Horses and along the side of the Stray at the opposite side of the road.
It was clear that people were drinking alcohol and were sitting on, and standing around
chairs and tables which are not normally present in that location.
Given that the door to the Coach and Horses was open, and people were exiting with filled
drinks glasses, it seemed clear that the Coach and Horses were providing alcohol in the
premises and encouraging people to consume it in the area where they had established
these outdoor facilities.

I was sure that this contravened the government guidance and legislation on management
of the COVID-19 pandemic. It was clear that in encouraging people to come in to use the
facility to purchase alcohol and to sit nearby, that the social distancing regulations and
guidelines could not be maintained so would be breached. The tables were not set at
distance to encourage social distancing, and I witnessed what amounted to a crowd of
people in near proximity; certainly much closer than the 2 meter distance which is required,
and not within the guidance on limited contact with others outside of the individual’s
household.

We know that alcohol reduces people’s inhibitions, so even if they initially adhere to
guidance, supplying them with alcohol is likely to lead a number of people to breach this. I
saw that the positioning of the tables did not allow for social distancing, and the provision of
alcohol made it likely that people would then be at risk of becoming even closer and
transmitting of the virus. As a society we are aware of the effects of alcohol and that is why
we require those who supply it to be particularly responsible and to have a licence to do so.

Unfortunately it is of course not just those directly involved who are at risk of
suffering. Those people involved will then go back to their families or their work places, or

Page
Page5051

10

food shops they visit, and transmission of the virus will occur. Maybe if they were able to
speak with some of my health service colleagues who are currently dealing with COVID-19
victims and fatalities in this region, they may take a more realistic view of the risks.
It is clearly known that there will always be individuals who flout the regulations, because
they think that they know better, that the rules do not apply to them, or have a false sense
of immunity from danger. In this case however the concern is that the licensee of the Coach
and Horses was breaching the regulations, and that this continued over a number of days. A
licensee has a position of responsibility in our community, with both a legal and moral duty
to carry out the responsibilities according to guidelines and legislation and taking into
account health and safety of customers and others in the area.

I cannot of course comment on the motives of the licensee, but can clearly see that the
interests of the customers and the local community were not being prioritised. I have read
that the breach of regulations was related to the intention to donate monies to the local
Horticap charity. I am an existent supporter of that charity, but cannot see how it can be
best served by flouting the COVID-19 regulations. Many beneficiaries of the charity have
health needs which leave them more vulnerable to the impact of COVID-19. The licensee’s
behaviour in flouting the regulations brings risk not benefit to the charity. I will be writing
separately to Horticap Trust Board to urge them to turn down any donations resultant from
this flagrantly contemptuous approach to the local community.

I urge that the Harrogate Borough Council take the strongest possible action against the
licensee and the business. I implore officers of the council not to be swayed by the
supposed intentions of the licensee to support a local charity. As I have outlined above, it is
clear that the actions are not in the favour of the general population or of vulnerable
people. The actions are so serious that the licensee cannot continue to hold responsibilities
with the authority of the Harrogate Borough Council.
I also urge the Harrogate Borough Council to ensure that reports arte passed to the police as
evidence which may lead to further enquiries by them and to prosecution.

Please let me know if you require further information or for me to be witness at any
hearing.
I would prefer my name and personal details to be withheld from public information if
possible, but if the release of this may be required for my comments to be part of the formal
license review progress, please let me know.
Yours sincerely
Tony Brownbridge

Page
Page5251

11

Representation Reference Number 23
I’d like to express my disgust at the blatant flouting of public safety by the owners of the Coach and
Horses public house in West Park Harrogate.
I understand that many businesses are financially impacted and suffering but to see the mass of
people congregating outside the premises and blocking the pavement for others with no regard to
social distancing is frankly frightening.
Almost 40,000 uk fatalities as a result of covid and the owner thinks up a loophole to open up and
encourage the gatherings against government policy.
If it was once and they closed then fine, mistakes happen. But to flout it and open on Sunday puts us
all at risk in Harrogate.
This cannot go unpunished without some form of sanction.
Kind regards,
Brian
Sent from my iPhone

Representation Reference Number 24
To whom it may concern
It is very clear that the licensee broke the law by serving alcohol in such a manner that was in total
disregard to public safety in order to profiteer from the opportunity they created under the guise of
a charitable event. I find it incredulous the contempt with which they responded to (I) the law (I)
enforcement officers. Sadly those attending were no better and if is that level of arrogance and
ignorance that will prolong the high level of Covid within our society resulting in more unnecessary
deaths. In my opinion the licensee acted recklessly and in breach of all concern for public safety just
to profiteer.
Yours faithfully
S H Dunn
Sent from my iPhone

Representation Reference Number 25
I was dismayed to find the public house in question has flagrantly breached the Covid 19 restrictions,
not once but twice. After being spoken to initially I find it insulting that a business in Harrogate
would take this selfish action again! Other businesses have respected the requirements & this must

Page
Page5253

12
be deeply frustrating for those who have been closed or operating correctly during these difficult
times.

I would hope that as a result of this irresponsible & potentially dangerous behaviour some
appropriate penalty can be imposed upon those responsible

Jillian Miller

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

Representation Reference Number 26
Hi
I wanted to thank HBC for taking proactive action against the Coach & Horses public house due to
theIr flagrant breach of rules in terms of serving alcohol and allowing the public to use public areas
as a make shift beer garden.
At the time of a national crisis, their actions showed a total lack of understanding for those affected
by covid 19 and endangered the lives of residents who had to navigate past what can only be
described as chaotic scenes.
I am also disappointed that your staff were subject to verbal abuse which is completely
unacceptable.
I have been a resident of Harrogate for 30 years and whilst having previously visited this pub, will no
longer do so.
They put profit and the interest of a few, ahead of safety for our all community and this is simply
unacceptable
Many thanks
Sent from my iPhone
David Phelan

Representation Reference Number 27
They repeatedly broke the law ignoring warnings, by doing this endangering the lives of folk not
even involved. Throw the book at them!
T Ramsay

Page
Page5453

13

Representation Reference Number 28
To whom it may concern. I was appalled to see photos in The Harrogate Advertiser of a crowd of
people drinking outside the above pub with no social distancing whatsoever. This was during not
only a pandemic but clear rules as to what pubs are allowed to do during this time. How. many of
these people were Covid asymptomatic? So now not only are they at risk but so is the wider
community - of which I am a member!

Then to compound matters aggression & abuse was directed at public servants trying to fulfil their
duty. This was a direct result of the irresponsible behaviour & breaking of the rules by the landlord.
If this is what he does during a health pandemic then what does he do when things are normal?

I think he has broken the conditions of his licence and I would support either a punitive fine or the
revocation of his licence, because where one goes other will follow!!

Yours faithfully
Julie O'Halloran

Representation Reference Number 29
Well done,
I am sick of people who think they know better than the official guidelines and are likely to prolong
this awful virus .
This landlord needs to have his licence revoked as his actions do not enhance community spirit but
have probably ruined it by spreading the virus and putting us in danger of yet further lockdowns.
I am not normally into making examples of people but this time I feel it is very justified to ensure
guidelines that are for the good of all are followed.
Martin Sweeney
Representation Reference Number 30
I refer to the above licensed premises.
In my opinion the landlord in opening not only once but twice is putting the lives of not only those
attending but also those trying to pass on the pavement at risk. He is also risking a spike in the virus
which will then cause a further lockdown which affects everyone in the area of Harrogate which is
extremely selfish.
It could also cause an increase of hospital admissions which affects both the frontline staff and those
waiting for urgent medical procedures.
It would appear that this landlord is not a suitable person to run licensed premises.

Page
Page5455

14
I appreciate however I have not heard his side of why he twice broke lockdown rules.
Kind regards John Fairfoot

Representation Reference Number 31
M allison
Anyone/Any Business should be prevented from acting in a way that directly/indirectly/promotes
behaviour that can cause injury eg increases transmission of Covid19 et al. I would therefore
recommend revoke of licence.
Sent from my iPhone

Representation Reference Number 32
I write as a Harrogate resident with some comments on this review.

I also observed people gathering outside the Coach and Horses on both Saturday 30 and Sunday 31
May. On the Saturday, there was a particularly large gathering of people with glasses and bottles of
drink both on the pavement outside and opposite on the grass verges near the road. Anyone walking
past would have found it extremely difficult to observe social distancing without going into the road.
On the Sunday, there seemed to be fewer people but the pub had clearly facilitated the gathering as
there was pub chairs etc set out on the grass verges for customers to sit on.

All of this was a clear and blatant breach of the Coronavirus regulations by the pub and shows a
complete lack of respect by the licensee for the law, his own licensing conditions and the general
public. I’m appalled to see in the application that there was a further breach on the Monday. Clearly
the licensee thinks that because he runs a popular and well known pub he is above the law.

This is also an insult to his fellow pub licensees in Harrogate who are observing the current
restrictions at great cost to their own businesses and staff.

The restrictions are there for all our protection. I lost my own mother (also a Harrogate resident) to
Covid-19 a couple of months ago and to see the cavalier disregard for public health and safety by this
pub is upsetting. This is a dangerous disease and has not “gone away”.

I am looking forward to the return to normality as much as anyone and have really missed being able
to go to the pub. I have also been a customer of this pub over the years. However this kind of
behaviour cannot be tolerated and I believe that the premises licence should be revoked.

Kind regards

Page
Page5655

15

Mrs Rachel Fell

Representation Reference Number 33
Dear Sir/Madam,

I write with reference to the License Review of the Coach and Horses public house.

We are still in the midst of a serious coronavirus pandemic where many lives are still being lost daily,
including those in Harrogate. The sort of behaviour experienced, which cannot be excused even by
the Dominic Cummings scandal, is an absolute disgrace and the owner, licensee and participants
should feel thoroughly ashamed and be dealt with by the full force of the law. To be putting lives at
risk, including those in public service, for the sake of a pint is incomprehensible. Why do people do
it? It has also diverted Council and Police resources which, in the current circumstances, must have
much better things to do.

As for the licensee, unlike more responsible landlords in the town, who continued to flout public
safety and the law despite several opportunities to retract, I think his license should be immediately
revoked. Such an irresponsible person is not fit to run a licensed premises.

Yours sincerely,

Murray Trantor
Representation Reference Number 34
Given the current situation and the danger to public health, the fact that the pub deliberately
ignored Council advise AND the abuse to the Council staff, I consider that the Coach & Horses should
have its license revoked.
P R Oldfield

Representation Reference Number 35
Dear Licencing authority

I have no direct knowledge of the incident at the Coach and Horses. But if the violation is as
described in the press and in the H&BC newsletter I very much hope that strong action will be
taken. I am very worried with the current move away from social isolation and illegal behaviour of
this type is dangerous for the people concerned and increases the likelihood of passing the disease

Page
Page5657

16
on to more vulnerable members of society – who can die of it. I sympathise with people faced with
loss of income, but other public houses have acted responsibly in respect of their
customers. Licensees that take unfair advantage and cant obey the rules don’t deserve to hold
licences.

Yours faithfully
Adrian Cook

Representation Reference Number 36
Dear Licencing authority

I have no direct knowledge of the incident at the Coach and Horses. But if the violation is as
described in the press and in the H&BC newsletter I very much hope that strong action will be
taken. I am very worried with the current move away from social isolation and illegal behaviour of
this type is dangerous for the people concerned and increases the likelihood of passing the disease
on to more vulnerable members of society – who can die of it. I sympathise with people faced with
loss of income, but other public houses have acted responsibly in respect of their
customers. Licensees that take unfair advantage and cant obey the rules don’t deserve to hold
licences.

Yours faithfully
Adrian Cook

Representation Reference Number 37
Dear Sirs
I must say I can’t blame the 3 pubs for trying to find a way around lockdown for the sake of their
businesses. However they were told it was against the rules and asked to stop. The Coach and
Horses showed a complete disregard and not only continued on Sunday but also on Monday. They
had set up a table and chairs on Tower Street and when I walked past there were at least 10 people,
possibly more, sat in a big group drinking. Absolutely no social distancing. I know the Virus is still
active in Harrogate as a friend has just been diagnosed positive.
I do feel an example needs to be made to reinforce the rules we are all having to abide by. Hopefully
it will stop others who think they can flout the rules and endanger others.
There’s nothing I would like better than to go to the pub with my family and friends but I know I cant
Yours faithfully Julie Mallinson
Sent from my iPhone
Representation Reference Number 38

Page
Page5857

17
To whom it may concern, I would like to submit comments regarding the licensing review of the
Coach and Horses pub in Harrogate.

I witnessed the pub being open and trading over the weekend of May 30th-31st and was frankly
appalled at the scenes at the pub and the areas outside, including opposite on the edge of the Stray.
It looked like any other usual summer's weekend, with a large number of customers openly drinking
and not observing social distancing.

I found it particularly disgraceful that the owner of the premises had opened under the pretence of
selling plants, and had even gone to the lengths of telling a national newspaper (Telegraph article
link included below) how they were adapting to sell plants and help a charity. Within the article the
pub specifically referenced alcohol not being available for sale - I can only presume this was a cheap
and cynical attempt to pull the wool over people's eyes, for which the licensee should be ashamed.

I believe the actions of the licensee were serious and deliberate, given they clearly tried to subvert
regulations by using a loophole to open and then continued to sell alcohol on the 31st, ignoring
requests from the council's officers. The provision of tables and chairs for customers to use also
demonstrated intent by the licensee. To me this shows a deliberate disregard for the law which
should be punished to the maximum possible extent.
Matt Squires

Telegraph article:
https://www.telegraph.co.uk/food-and-drink/pubs-and-bars/hanging-gardens-harrogate-local-pubbecame-lockdown-garden-centre/

Representation Reference Number 39
I was disappointed to hear of the anti social behaviour at the coach and horses and having read your
notice felt it neccessary to write in support of a review of the licence. It was clearly a wrong move to
open just for the sale of alcohol to be consumed around their premises , but then to do it in such a
way that had complete disregard for the social distancing measures required was so irresponsible.
To then repeat the procedure the next day, after a warning, clearly indicates a blatant disregard for
the rules. If this constitutes a breach of the licence under which they are authorised to trade then we
fully support any penalties the authorities may be able to impose.
My MAR-LX1A. On O2.
J A Blackburn

Representation Reference Number 40

Page
Page5859

18
Dear Sir
In response to your email I consider that undermining arose due to breach of COVID regulations/
guidelines being permitted.
Richard Blackshaw

Representation Reference Number41
The place should be immediately shut down because it blatantly ignored instructions concerning
codiv 19 instructions putting public safety at risk.

Best wishes John.

John Topping,

Representation Reference Number 42
I was unable to find the form to put in my conplaint.
I wish to make known my total disgust at the disregard for lockdown and for the health of harrogate
people caused by the horrendous behaviour of the Coach and Horses.
Other landlords desperate to open are adhering to the law.
As a keyworker I am only too aware of the sacrifices being made.
They need to be made an example of and made to suffer. I sincerely hope they will not be allowed to
open when the goverment deems the time to be right for pubs to open.
They have profiteered illegally and endangered life.
Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Representation Reference Number 43

Subject: Coach & Horses
I confirm that during the very hot spell late May 2020 I passed this pub and was surprised to see it
‘open’ , open in as much many drinkers were illegally congregating standing too close together and
or sat by tables on bar stools on Both sides on the A 61 ie on the highway (pavement). thereby
committing two offences by obstructing the highway and drinking upon it , if the ruse by the pub
was to claim a takeaway situation no taking away was happening as drinks were being consumed
adjacent the premises.

Page
Page6059

19
Outrageous disgraceful very surprised HBC taking action, bearing in mind Oak Beck is swimming in
sewage and HBC take no action because it’s unseen and not public like the Coach and Horses
maybe?
Christopher Dunn
Representation Reference Number 44
Had I known who to contact on Monday afternoon at 16.15 hrs I would have contacted them.I was
extremely angry to see people on the the spare bit of pavement opposite the side entrance to The
Coach and Horses sat on individual seats not two metres apart partaking in alcohol.
The majority of the Harrogate community have been adhering to the government guidelines over
the past 10 weeks, the sun comes out and a pub landlord thinks I will cash in on this and do my own
thing. I personally think this is appalling, he wants to go and witness the stress and strain of front
line workers and the relatives of loved ones battling Covid 19. The landlords actions were clearly in
breach of the governments guidelines and advise, I am sure Harrogate Council also hold this view.
My daughter is a Consultant in Emergency Medicine and a Deputy Clinical Director in the North West
of England, she is Harrogate born, bred and educated, when told of the aforementioned drinking
activities to say her attitude was one of disgust would be an understatement, her reply was my staff
are daily endangering their lives to treat and hopefully save the lives of Covid 19 patients and these
idiots endanger everybody by their selfish and thoughtless actions.
If possible the license of these premises should be revoked with immediate effect, and view shared
by many of my friends and colleagues.
Mrs J. E. Ford.

Representations in support of Coach and horses Numbers 1-3
Representation Reference Number 1a
I understand you are reviewing the licence of the Coach and Horses Pub because of action taken by
them over the last weekend in May 2020.
I believe a warning or fine is sufficient.
Whilst they may technically have broken the lockdown regulations there have been so many mixed
messages and confusion by the Government, including the Cummings exercise which was widely
publicised and condemned by the court of public opinion. Trust in Government capability has been
diminished and the crowds in the town showed that is a significant cause as well.

Page
Page6061

20
Take a moderate view. We need businesses to begin to open safely and to overly fine the Coach and
Horses by loss of licence would set up an overly criminalistic example. Restate the rules and allow
business to survive.
I visited the site on Sunday afternoon and saw a good example of social distancing on the opposite
side of the road on the Stray edge, which we will need everywhere soon. Make sure the rest of
Harrogate hospitality and tourism can operate more safely by allowing roads to close and pavements
to be used for eating and drinking.
A fine possibly for the Coach and Horses, a valued and viable business but get on with the real work
of getting the town working again in a safe and calm manner.
Kind regards
Peter Whittingham

Representation Reference Number 2a

Dear Sir,

The decisions made by the publican at the Coach and Horses on Saturday and Sunday
leading to the events that gave rise to the prohibition order were, in my view, misguided and had an
unfortunate outcome that may have put people at risk due to the lack of social distancing that was
possible outside the pub. It was also unacceptable for some of the drinkers to abuse council officers
for doing their job.

However, this pub in particular is a great asset to the town and has supported both the
events that have come to the town and charities such Martin House and Horticap for longer and to a
much larger extent than any other licensed establishment in Harrogate. It is also one of the few pubs
that does not have slot machines and television. It provides a great and high quality service to town
and especially older residents like myself who prefer to socialise at a pub without the interference of
television.
I hope that any action taken will take into account the good work that the Coach and Horses has
done for many years and also not deprive me of the pleasure of socialise with my friends at this
friendly establishment. (Note: I am 76yrs and appreciate that everyone is doing to help me stay
safe. I fully support the action that the council has taken to stop such events happening again).

Yours sincerely

Ian Sutcliffe

Page
Page6261

21

Representation Reference Number 3a

Dear Sirs
In light of the events there reported by your officials, the application for review of the licence
of the Coach and Horses is understandable. I would, however, urge you not to proceed to
punitive action but to see those events as a very unusual response in very unusual
circumstances.
I am not familiar with the landlord, but have frequented the Coach and Horses over many
years. I have found it invariably to be a friendly and welcoming establishment, utterly devoid
of the sort of trouble which can affect public houses. It appeals to those who enjoy a
traditional pub and its atmosphere, food and drink in order to meet friends and
socialise. None of that has been possible under the C-19 restrictions, which have been
entirely unprecedented - as were, I believe, the recent events which are the subject of this
application. During previous threats to national safety, it has been possible for people to
come together for mutual comfort and support. Uniquely, that has not been possible during
the C-19 lockdown and it has taken its toll on the psychological well being of many
people. No-one should be surprised that, as the Government announced the easing of
restrictions, people across the country would take it, however mistakenly, as a signal of
release from those restrictions. It is simply what many, many people needed.
I cannot know, but suspect that many of those using the Coach and Horses on the occasions
in question were not all regular customers, but people seeking that release. No doubt some
were encouraged by the approach of the Government's chief adviser to consider that they
were acting perfectly reasonably. Whatever the case, I would agree that their reported
conduct was not, in fact, acceptable. But to reflect that upon the pub and its landlord is, to
my mind, no more acceptable. True, as reported by your officials, Mr Nelson's behaviour
towards them fell short of what it should have been; but I cannot properly imagine how Mr
Nelson must have been feeling during the weeks of lockdown. Against a national
background of multiple pub closures in recent years, it seems reasonable to suppose that he
had experienced a time of great anxiety. The prospect of some return to normality must, I
assume, have seemed as irresistible as the outcome was regrettable.
I would therefore urge that these events be considered against that unprecedented
background, and are not allowed to dominate consideration of a pub which has otherwise
operated, to my knowledge, without blemish. It is a significant contributor to the social life
of Harrogate and to the local community. You are no doubt aware of its support for Martin
House hospice, which has benefitted substantially from the Coach and Horse's fund-raising
efforts over the years. I trust the irony is not lost on you that your notice of the application
for review appeared in the same newsletter as you praised The Local Lottery. You clearly
recognise the importance of good causes in our community, so I trust you will not jeopardise
the continuing contributions of the Coach and Horses.
With kind regards
Mark Hawkins

Page
Page6263

22

Page
Page6463

Page
Page6465

Appendix 7

Photographs Taken by Julia Stack, Community Safety & CCTV Manager
on Sunday 31 May 2020 at 13:38hrs

Page
Page6665

Page
Page6667

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 67

This page is intentionally left blank

